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A HISTORY OF METROPOLITAN EDISON
COMPANY'S WESTERN DIVISION

Although electricity was first
. .roduced into the area now served by
the Metropolitan Edison Company in the
city of Reading one hundred years ago on
March 8, 1883, it did not come to what
is now the company's Western Division
until 1885 in York, followed by Hanover
and Gettysburg in 1893, Glen Rock in
1903 and Dillsburg in 1909.

Initially this new type of energy.

was used only for lighting. As the
desire for electricity grew, isolated
generating plants were installed in many
small communities, such as Boiling
Springs, Railroad, Fawn Grove and Orr-
tanna. A number of individual gener-
ating operations were started by indus-
tries where the use of electricity was
extended to operate .machinery. During
this growth, many power companies were
formed and obtained charters to serve
local municipalities. Some never pro-

duced electricity, but sold their fran-.

chise rights to operating companies that
had generating capabilities. ~ These

111 companies, by progressively merg-
wug into larger ones, became today's
Met-Ed System.

Metropolitan Edison Company entered
the Western Division when it acquired
the Gettysburg, Hanover and Cumberland
Valley (Dillsburg) -electric companies
and the York Haven Water and Power gen-
erating facilities im 1925-26.  Later
acquisitions included Orrtanna in 1928,
Boiling Springs in 1936 and the Edison
Light and Power Company {(York) in 1950.

YORK HAVER

The York Haven Water & Power Company
was incorporated on January 16, 1895 by
Henrvy .. farter, Francis Stokes, Jona-
than Zvans, Samuel Mason and Phillip
Garett. According to a deed, dated May

51, 1901, land and water rights omn the

Susguehanna River near York Haven were
nurchased from the York = Haven Paper
Company and others. The site salected
" v z hydroelectric generating station
~«8 in the Susquehanna River at the

M marrann Talla ‘thara *ha rivaew £all

approximately 23 feet in three—quarters
of a mile over a series of rapids. A

diversion dam was built extending
approximately 8,000 feet in & northerly
direction upstream and across the river

- to Three Mile Island,

The actual construction of this pro-
ject was started in 1901 with the first
portion being completed in 1904. All
work was done by the Power Company under
supervision of Thomas Greene. The gran=
ite rock used in the project was secured
from a quarry nearby, north of the site.
(This same quarry was the source of the
granite rock used in the wall around the
Capitol in Washingtom, D.C.) The rock
was transported by the Northern Central
Railway Co. on facilities built es~
pecially for this purpose.

‘The buildings were designed by Ar-
chitect Dempwolf of York. The steel for
the original building was purchased from
the Phoenix Iron Works. The water

~'ryheels and mechanical arrangement with

wooden gears for driving the generators

were designed by the Poole Engineering

and Machine Co. of Baltimore,”Maryland.
Each unit consisted of 2 turbine wheels
and a Stanley Company 3-phase, 2300-
volt, 60-cycle generator rated at 700
kilowatts (KW).

_ At the completion of the initial
phase of constructiom, an ice gorge and
flood waters collapsed the super-
structure of the power plant neces=
sitating the reconstruction of the
building., Fortunately there was only
winor damage to the machinery and
electrial equipment. Consequently, all
repairs were made go that the first unit
was put into service on August 28, 1904,
followed by 5 wmore wunits that same
year. - The remainder of the building was
completed in 1907 and more generating
units were added periodically through
1914 for a total of 20.

Between 1905 and 1911 considerable
dredging was done in the main channel to
improve the water flew into the forebay
of the power plant.

The distribution systems LO serve
~ntantial Anaramapa -reve nder nonstruce=
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York Haven Hydro Electric Station . Emngen
‘ . %ﬁﬂﬁﬁx Viog i
tion during 1903 and were ready for ser~ .., . A previous temporary gravel dmnuiih%dea-
vice at the completion of the plant in troyed pending settlement of ‘damage

1904, They
line in York Haven and wvicinity, and

',000=-volt lines to the City of York.
_.a 1904 and 1905 a 23,000~volt line was
built to serve the Borough of Middletown
and cther power customers in the area on
that side of the river. The line was
extended in 1906 to Steelton to serve
that electric company and 'the Pennsyl-
vania Steel Co. and finally to the Har-
risburg Light & Power and Valley Trac-
tion Companies. A 4800-volt 1line was
built to Bainbridge in 1915. Later, in
1919, an additiomal 23,000-volt circuit
was placed on the same line to supply
power tc the J. E. Baker Co. plants at
Billmyer,

Because of annual periods of low
water in the summer months and ice and
high water conditions during the winter
.ne¢  _mring, :the <company's zhilirtvy o
previde an adequate supply of electri-

2icy to satisfy the demand was limited
at times, .

T2 ‘aprove low water situationms,
‘agal rizhts were secured 2and an =ast

construcced in
Island and the

. TEnne i, oW-Lzvel dam was
"T918 “etween Three Mile

- _ilvar.,

consisted of a 4800-volt

~eclaims as a result of a number of law

guits. .

into re—
and was
direction of E. F.

The original company went
ceivership on February 24, 1910,
operated under the

Baker, General Manager, until August 26,
1911, In 1911, W. Lowry Mann replaced
Baker as General Manager of the York

Haven Water & Power Co. He was named
Western Division Manager of the. Metro-
politan Edison Co. when it tock over
that coupany in 1925, a position he held
uantil his retirement in 1946. Carl E.
Freeman, employed in 1904, was York
Haven Power Plant Superintendent from
1910 to 1941 when he retired.

The first interchange of Power be-
tween York Haven and the Met-Ed system
occurred on December 20, 1920. The York
Haven and Hanover Light, Heat and Power
Co. systems first Interchanged power omn
July 11, 1924,

the advisability of in-
creasing the plant's output, a L200-KW
rartical wunit was inszalled 1in early
1923 to replace one of the 700-KW
units. Based upon the operating exper-

ience of this insrallation, Met-Ed pro-
eeElith oy JEPlaue wlill VeTLLCal

To determine
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type 4800-volt generators, between 1927
and 1930, " As a result, the overall
plant generating capacity was increased
from 14,000 KW to 19,620 KW.

_  with this increased load, it was
"deemed advisable to relieve the 23,000~
volt system. In September 1930 the new
4800-volt generation was comnected to
the 66,000~volt transmission system
where the two lines between Middletowm
and York passed near the plant. These
lines were later changed to 114,000
volts.

HANOVER

Eight years after Edison completed
his successful incandescent lamp, Dr.
John Wiest of York sent a dynamo to Han-
.-2ar for demonstration purposes on
October 19, 1887, The dynamo was set up
in the Samuel H. Bechtel & Som Cigar Box
& Hosiery Manufacturer's building, which
was located at the site of a building
now owned by Lester H. Little on Chest-
nut Street in the rear of the Hanover

Hardware Store. It was driven by a

35-horsepower steam engine and was used
‘ light 25 lamps. The demonstration
iZsted about a week and people came from
miles around to see this phenomenon.

S§ix years later, in 1893, the Han-
over Light, Heat & Power Company was
organized by F. E. Bailey, David Longe-
necker, John Gastrock, Robert J. Heikes
and  John W. Wimper.

The company purchased =2 tract of
land {(the site of Met~Ed's present dis-
trict service center) along the Western
Maryland Railroad near Third and High
Streets. In 1894, a power house was
construcced <here and generating equip-
ment installed. The first was an arc
machine for street lighting followed by
i1 200-KW generator operated Dby thrae
hand-fired Btoilers. The gplant procucea
direct current for operation of the Han-
ovar-McSherrystown Railway, and alter-
sating current for general distributionm.

A 13,200-voit line was uuilt <o
~tysburg through Bomneauville in 1918,
vois a second line was built by way of
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system. In‘turn, the Dilisburg area was

‘block of Baltimore Street.

supplied from a 13,200-volt line from
Hanover through East Berlin. Eventually
this 13,200-volt distribution system was
interconnected from Dillsburg through
Mt, Holly Springs to Gettysburg.

Additional generation was added in
1924 and 1927.

A 66,000-volt line was built in 1923
from York to help carry the increasing
load along with a second line in 1926.
These became the sole source of . power’
for the entire Met-Ed territory west of
York as the old generating equipment was
gradually withdrawn from service.

The original office of the Hanover
Light, Heat and Power Co. was in the
Northeast quadrant of the town's
square. It was later moved to the first

Electrical appliances began to
appear about 1920. Employees were;.asked

to take a toaster under one arm, a six-

pack of lamps under the other and com=

tact customers in the evening after

working hours. Prizes were awarded for
sales. Customers could pay for the
appliances by installments on their
electric bills.
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The name of the company was changed
-~ -ha "apaver Zawer “a, and was taken
over by Metropolitan Edison Co. in 1923,



GETTYSBURG

The Electric Light, Heat & Power Co.
" started operating from a power plant
wnich was leased from the Gettysburg
-Railway Co.

There are indications that this com-
pany was in financial trouble from
records that its plant and property were
sold at a Sheriff's Sale on May 1,
1897. The purchaser was a newly organ-
ized company known as the Keystone
Electric Light, Heat & Power Co. of
Gettysburg. In 1910 its name was
changed to the Gettysburg Light Com=-
pany. A plant located at North and
Washington Streets was
Central Savings & Trust Co.

acquired the Gettysburg Light . Co..
continued to operate the plant until the
'13,200-volt line was built from Hanover
in 1918. The plant. was. discontinued and
power was purchased £froem the Hanover

Light, Heat & Power Co.
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. The Gettysburg Electric Co. was ac-
auired by the Metropolitan Edisom Co. in

- o s

purchased from

In 1916 the Gattysburg Eieétri@ Co,...
and -

Gettysburg was ‘incorporated .in- 1893....:
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DILLSBURG

Electricity was introduced into

Dillsburg by::F.. 'E:. Bailey iniI881: when

he was given a contract to light the
borough streets. - The site of the power
plant was on the east side of Baltimore
Street, This electric lighting business
passed through successive hands and in
1910 some of the owners and operators
formed the Dillsburg Light, Heat & Power
Co. which took over the power plant,
distribution system and business for-
merly conducted by individuals.

About 1911, the Dillsburg Company
purchased the Kunkel's Mill property for
the purpose of installing both steam and
hydroelectric generating equipment.
After this plant was in operatiom, the
electric generating plant

a2 sk s N

when

remained in service until 1919,
electric energy was received ower a
transmigssion line from Trindle Springs
from the Cumberland Valley Electric Co.

At Mt. Holly Springs the M., E. Kray-
bill Light, Heat & Power Co. was formed
in 1909 to operate in Carroll Township
in York County and in South Middleton
and Upper Allen Townships and Mt. Holly

Springs Borough in Cumberland County.
The generating equipment was installed
in Leidigh's Mills, Monroe Township.
Another 60-KW hvdro plant at Williams
Grove on the VYellow Breeches Creek in
Monroe Township was in operation until
1926.

Kravbill Company became part of the
Cumberiand Valley Electric Co. 1n 1920
which took over the Dillsburg Company in
1922, Metropolitan Edison Co. acquired
the Cumberland. Vallev Electric Co. in

[ N
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organized in 1886, The first test run
of 'an electric trolley was from Center

Square to Highland Park in West York, on

Angust 18, 1893, ‘which marked "the beg:m-

\v:mg of this service in York.

The 110/220-volt direct current
electricity supplied by the Edison Co.
generators required very large copper
wires, and even the area served from a
single generating station was limited.
In order to overcome this limitationm,
three phase alternating current service'
was started in 1894, This made possible
the generation and distribution of
electric power at higher voltages with
the use of transformers to reduce those
voltages to 110 or 220 wvolts for the
safe use by homes and industries. The
higher voltage also permitted smaller
wire to be used. S it
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The York Steam’ ‘Heating Co.
formed in .1898 to supply heat to down-
town buildings w:.th steam purchased A from
the Edison Co.*“Exhaust steam  ffom the
generating plant's engines was adequate
to supply the total demand for 75 per
cent of the season, but required live
team to be added the remaining 25 per
The area served with steam heat
bounded by North Street, Pine
Street, College Avenue and Water
Street. The original mains were tin-
lined wood casing wrapped with tar paper.
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Eventually the demand for electri-
¢city increased to the point where an-
other source of supply was sought.
Further increase of generating capacity
at Central Plant was limited by the low
flow of the Codorus Creek. To satisfy
this need, two 23,000-volt lines were
built to the York Haven hydro-generating
station in 1904. As part of the con-
tract for the purchase of this power, it
was agreed that the York Haven Water and
Power MNo. would serve 2all industrial
customers in the Edison Light and Power
Co. territory requiring over 100 horse-
power of energy.

In 1907 the Edison Light and Power
Co. merged with, and became a subsidiary
‘£, the York Railways Co.
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The trolley line to Hanover was

' Power Co. ‘

too long to be supplied from the 600-
volt direct current network.. Conse=

. .‘quently a 6600-voit alternag_xqg currenp
“>: gygtem  was- installed From Wests-YOTK to~-

Hanover. A special suburban trolley car
was equipped with a motor that could be
operated either by alternating or direct
current and a transformer to reduce the
6600 to 600 wvolts. At the end of West
King Street, where the two systems met,
each trolley's pole had to be pulled
down from the 600-volt DC line, the car
allowed to drift through a gap between
the systems, and them a pantagraph had to
be raised to pick up the 6600-volt AC
line to complete the trip to Hanover.

The Red Lion and Windsor Light Co.
was purchased by the Edison Light and
Power Co. in 1913.

"2

an additional pow_et supply,
Pennsylvania Water and Power; Co. built
two 69,000-volt lines from J.ts Holtwood.

- Eydro-generaung Station o @ 'mew sub-

station at Violet Hill, south of York,
in 1923, With the campletiou of thia
interconnection, the Edison Co. now had
three sources of supply as follows:

A 13,200-volt system was established -

at this time with lines extending to
Glen Rock, Gitts Run (near Hanover),
Violet Hill and Red Lion: This system
was extended to substations in the East
and West ends of York in 1927, to Hellam
in 1930 and to Dover in 1931,

During 1931, all engine-driven
generating equipment was removed from
the Edison company's Central Plant.
From then on all power produced at this
plant was from sceam—turbine generators.

In 1931, Metropolitan Edison -built
two 66,000-volt lines from its Seith
Street Substacion to connect with



Pennsylviania’ Water and Power Co.'s
Violet Hill Substation. These served to
iprrease the reliability of Edison Light
]

a__ -Power Co.'s supply.

The Codorus Creek flooded on August
23, 1933, reaching 4 depth of 5 feet in
the boiler room. Resulting fires were
extinguished and all rotating equipment
was stopped, causing a shut down of the
entire direct current trolley system.

All
Railways Co.

trolley service of the York
was terminated on Sunday,

February 5, 1939, replaced by the York
Bus Co., a separately owned corpor-
ation. All equipment in the Central
Plant that had been wused for trolley

operation was taken out of service and
the York Railways Co, was terminated.
‘Prior to World War II, most of the
operations at the Central Plant were de~
voted to steam heat with electr:clty
only being generated when exhaust steam
was required for heating load. However,
during the war, the generators were
called upon often to help meet the heavy
d .nds created by defense plant oper-

atrons. The machine shop at the plant
was involved in the defense effort by
turning out pump parts for the Navy

under sub-contracts from manufacturers.

During the early 1920's, the Nation-
al Electric Power Company, an Insull
holding company, acquired control of the
York Railwivs Co. and the Edigon Powe- &
Light Co. TFollowing the bankruptcy of
the Insull Companies, Met-Ed acquired
control of the Edison Light & Power Co.
and it was merged into Met-Ed in 1950.
At this time, all operations were con=~

solidated at Met-Ed's new building on
Parkway Blvd.

On May 1, 195%, all electric gener-
iting equipment was removed from the
York Generating Station (Central Plant),
wnich then changed its identity to the

nomical for both
steam heat service was ter-

York Steam Heating Plant because that
was the only function remaxnxng at the
site, New oil-fired boilers were in-
stalled in 1963 to reduce air pollution
caused by the advanced age of the coal
fired ones. Due to the increasing cost
of fuel o0il, making the operation uneco-
the company and the
customers,
minated on May 31, 1977.

GLEN ROCK
The first electricity for general
distribution in the southern part of

" Co.'s West substation to Glen Rock

Juaccr e

York County wag generated by the Deer
Creek Water and Water Power Co,, which
had a hydroelectric plant on Deer Creek
between Stewartstown and Fawn  Grove.
This company was founded on Deceaber 17,
1903 to serve the communities of

Shrewsbury, New Freedom and Stewartstown

initially. Later service was extended
to Glen Rock. . e n e i
. - T ' . L L st P Rl
In Glen Rock, the Norrish Co.

installed a gemerator to illuminate its
plant as early as 1892, That Company~
offered to supply street lighting to the
borough at reasonable rates, The Glen

Rock Electric Llight and Power Co. was
formed in 1908 by W. H. Burnham and
others., They eventually moved - the

facilities from the foundry to a site on
Baltimore Street. By 1921, 13 years
later, they had acquired 18 small
borough and township chartered companies
and in 1929 took over the Deer Cresk and
Railrcad Borough generatiag operations.

A second 13,200-volt line was built
in 1928 from the Edison Light and Power
to

supply addxtlonal power.

4 100~ton tank ice plant was oper-
atad Yy the Glen Rock Zlectric Light and
Power Co. from 1919 to 1946. When the
company merged with the Edison Light and
Power Co. on January 31, 1946, all ice
making equipment was dismantled.
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